
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 4 


ATLANTA FEDERAL CENTER 

<3. FORSYTH STREET 


A;LANTA GEORG A 30303-8960 


,fEB 14 2012 

CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETURN RECElI'I' REQ(JE~TED 

Mr. William Dyle 
General Manager 
Highside Chemicals. Inc, 
11114 Reichhold Rood 
Gulfport, Mississippi 39503 

Re: Highside Chemicals. Inc. 

Con:rent Agreement and Final Order 

Docket No.: TSCA-04-2605(b) 


DCllI Mr. Dyle: 

Enclol:lt:u is a copy ofthe ratified Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) in the above-referenced 
matter. The original CAFO has been filed with tht! Regional Hearing Clerk and .:served on the parties as 
directed in Section 22,6 of the Consolidated. RUles ofPrncticc, 40 C.F.R Part 22. 

Please refer to Section V of the CAFO for penalty infonnation and payment requirements. To ensure 
proper processing, the Respondent's name and Docket Number for this case, identified above and in the 
CAFO, should be noted on any cashier's or certified check submitted in payment of the penally. 

Also enclosed IS a copy of a document entitled <lNotice of Securities and Exchange Commission 
Registrants' DUty to Disclose Environmentall.egal Procet-'dings." This document puts you on notice of 
your potential duty to disclose to the Securities and Exchange Commissiun any environmental 
enforcement actions taken by the G. S. Environmental Protection Agency. Where used in the document 
"SEC" refers to the Securities and E,<change Commission. 

Should you have any questions about this matter or your compliance status in the future, please contact 
Mr. Verne George orthe EPA Regiol14 statIa. (404) 562-8988. 

J 
Jeancanne M. Gettle 

-. ' 
! 

~
 
Chief 
Pesticides and Toxic 

Sub!:>tances Branch 

Enclosures 
Init>mel Address ,URLj. hllp:l!'IYWW.epa.gov 
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llNITED STATES 

RNVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 


REGION 4 

ATLANTA, GEORGIA 


In tbe Matter of: J 
) 

Highside Chemicals, Inc. ) Doeket No.: 
) 

Respondent ) 

------------------------) 


CONSENT AGRREMEJ1iT AND FINAL ORDER 

I. Nature of the Action 

1, 	 This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Se'"~til)n 16(a) oflhe Toxic Substances 

Control Act (TSCA), 15 U.S.C. § 2615(.). and pursuanllo lhe Consolidated Rules of 

Practice Governing Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the 

RevocalionlTerrninalion or Suspension of Pennits (Consolidated Rules). 40 C.f,R 

Part 22, Complainant is the Director of the Air, Pesticides and Toxics Management 

Division. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4. Respondent 18 Highside 

ChcmicaJs, inc, 

2. 	 Complaina"t and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement pursuant to 

40 C.F.R. § 22, I & l1I1d desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations described 

herein without a tonnal hearing. Therefore-, without the taking of any evidence or 

testirnony~ the making of any argument; or the adjudkatkm of any issue in this matter. 

and in accordance with 40 C.I'.R. § 22.13(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order 

(CAFO) will simuitane()usly commence and conclude this matter. 



II. Preliminary Statements 

3. 	 The authority to take action under Sectiun 16(a) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C § 2615(0), i>vested 

in the Administrator of the EPA. The Administrator of the EPA has delegated this 

authority under TSCA to the EPA Region 4 by EPA Delegation 12-2-A, dated May t I, 

1994. 

4. 	 Pursuant to Section 15 ofTSCA, 15 U.S.c. § 2614, it is unlawful for any person to: 

(1) fait or refuse to comply with any rule or order promulgated pursuant to Sections 4, 5, 

8, 12 or 13 ofTSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2603, § 2604, § 2607, § 2611 or § 2612); (2) lIsefor 

commercial purpose:) a chemical substance or mixture tlmt the person knew or had rea.":;on 

to know was manufaclured, imported. processed, or distributed in commerce in violation 

ofTSCA Section 5,15 U.s.c. § 2604: (3) fail to maintain records, submit reports or 

infonnalion, or permit access to or allow copying of records as required by TSCA; and 

(4) refuse to pennit entry or inspection as authorized by Section 11 of TSCA, 15 US.C. 

§ 2610. 

5. 	 Any person who 'violates 8,provJslon of Section 15 ofTSCA shall he !lable for a civii 

penalty in an amount not to exceed $25,000 for each such violation, in accordance with 

Section 16(0) ofTSCA. The Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996 requir.s lhe EPA 

to review and adjust penalties, a<; necessary, for inflation at least once every four years. 

As such, pursuant to the Adjustment ufCivil Mont'tary Penalties for inflation Rule, 

40 C.F.R. Part 19, the rcvi~ed maximum penalty tor each violation occurring after 

January 30, 1997, through March 15,2004, is S27,5{U); for each violation occurring after 

March 15,2004, through January 12.2009, the maximum penalty for each vloJation is 

$32,500; and for each violation occurring after January J2.2009, the maximum penalty 
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for each violation is $37.500. Each day a violation continues may constitute a sepal'ate 

violation. 

6. 	 All Confidential Business Infonn.anon (CBI) in this CAFO has been redacted, To 

delermine the identity of the chemical substance referenced in this CAFO or the CBI that 

was deleted [CBI deleted], Complainant and/or Respondent should refer to the letter, 

dated August 12,2011, sent W ilie Respondent identiJYing the potential violations of 

TSCA and notifYing the Rcsporuknt of the opportunity to show cause why the EPA 

should not proceed Vtith an enibrcement action, 

Ill. Sp""ific Allegations 

7. 	 Respondent operates a chemical blending Jilcility located at 11114 Rcichhold Road, 

Gulfport, Mississippi, 

8. 	 Respondent is an exporter as the term is defined in 40 CF.R. § 707.63(b). 

9. 	 On May 26, 2011, an authorized agent of the EPA Region 4 conducted an inspection at 

Respondcnt's place ofbu,inc,s pursuant to Scction II(a) ofTSCA, 15 U.S.c. § 261O(a). 

10. 	 Ba..,:ed on the records that were provided to the inspector and later reviewed by the EPA, 

it was detennined tlmt Respondent exported a shipment of [CflI deleted] to [CBI deleted] 

on Febrt!lll'y 25, 2008. 

II. 	 [eB! deleted] contained greater than one percent [CB! deleted] hereinafter referred to as 

Chemical A. 

12. 	 A, of[CBI deleted], Chemical A was subject to a teSf rule promulgated pursuant to 

Section 4 ofTSCA 15 U.S.c. § 2603 and referenced at 40 C.F.R. § 799 [CBI deleted]. 
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13. The regulation set forth at 40 C.F.R. § 799 [CB! deletedJ requires any person who export 

or intends to export a chemical substance listed in IeBI deleted] to comply with 

40 C.F.R. § 707, Subpart D. 

14. 	 Chemical A was listed in LeBl deletcdJ when it was exported, therefore, Respondent was 

subject 10 the export Dolilieation requirements promulgated at 40 C.F.R. § 707, 

Subpart D. 

15. 	 Respondent failed to submit an export notice to EPA when Chemical A was exported to 

ICBl deletedJ. 

16. 	 Respondent violated Section 15 ofTSCA, 15 U.S.c. § 2614, by failing to comply with 

Section 12(b) ofTSCA, IS U.S.C. §§ 2611(b) and the regulations promulgated at 

40 C.P.R. § 707, Subpart D. 

17. 	 Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 707.60(1), failure to comply with TSCA Section 12(b), ISU.S.C. 

§ 2611 (b) is considered a violation ofTSCA Section IS(3), IS U.S.c. § 2614, and will 

subject exporter to the penalty provisions ofTSCA Sections 16 and 17, 15 U.S.c. 

§§ 261S and 2616. 

TV. Consent Agreement 

18. 	 For the purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations set forth 

above and neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set forth above. 

19. 	 Respondent waives its right to a hearing on the allegations contained herein and its right 

to appeal the proposed Final Order accompanying the Consent Agreement. 

20. 	 Respondent consents to the assessment of the penalty proposed by the EPA and agrees to 

pay the civil penalty as set forth in this CAfG. 
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21. Respondent certifies that as ofthe date of its execution of this CAFO, it is in compJiance 

with the TSeA regulations referenced in this CAFO, 

22, 	 Compliance with this CAFO shall resolve the allegations of the violations contained 

herein. This CAPO shall not othetwise affect any liability of'Respondent to the United 

States. Other than as expressed herein, neither the EPA nor Complainant waives any 

right to bring an enforcement action against Respondent for viulation .of any federal or 

state statute, regulation or pemit, to initiate an aetion tor imminent and substantial 

endangennent or to put'!\ue criminal enforcement. 

23. 	 Complainant and Respondent agree to "'ttle this matter by their execution of this CAFO. 

The parties agree that the settlement of this matter is in the public interest and that this 

CAFO is consistent with the applicable requirements ofTSCA. 

24. 	 Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.5(c)(4), the following individual is authorized to receive 

service for the EPA in this proceeding: 

VemeGeorge 
Chemical Products and Asbestos Section 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303·8960 
(404) 562· 8988. 

V. FInal Order 

25. 	 Respondent is assessed a civil penalty of SIX THOUSAND, FIVE HUNDRED 

FORTY FIVE DOLLARS ($6,545). Four payments "ill be made to complete payment 

of the entire civil penalty including interesL The ftrst installment is due within 30 days of 

the cff(.'Ctivc date of this CAFQ, The subsequent three payments shall be due in 90 day 

intervals thereafter. Including the civil penalty and interest, the total arnoWlt that will be 

paid upon the completion ofall payments will be SIX THOUSAND, FIVE HUNDRED 
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SIXTY NlN.: DOLLARS and FH,Y SIX CENTS ($6,569.56). Respondent shall 

make payments in accordance with the foHowing schedule: 

Payment Number Pavment Dne Date 	 Payment Due 

1 within 30 days of filing ofCAFO $1.636.25 
2 within 120 days of filing ofCAFO $1.644.44 
3 within 210 days of filing ofCAFO $1.644.44 
4 ,,,ithin 300 days of filing o["CAFO $1,644.43 

26. 	 Respondent shall remit the penalty payment by either a cashier's or certified check made 

payable to the "Trea~urer, United States of America." The Respondent shall note on 

the face of the check the Respondent's name and the Docket Number associated 

with thi& CAFO. lbe perullty payment shall be sent by one oftbe meUlOds below. 

Address for payment submittal using the United States Postal Service: 

U.S, Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Clndrmati Finance Center 
P.O. Box 979077 

St. Louis, Missouri 63197-9(100. 


Address for payment submittal using other dcHvery service {e.g." Federal Expresl':, 
United Parcel Service DRr'l etc.}: 

u.s. Bank 
1005 Convention Plaza 
Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL 
St. r .ouis, Missouri 63 (0I 

Contact Person: Natalie Pearson - (314) 418-4087 

27, 	 At the time of payment, Respondent shall send a separate copy of the check and a written 

statement that the payment is being made in accordance with this CAFO, to the following 

pefSQns at the following addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.s. EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 

Hlg.hsi{lc Chemicals. Inc. 6 
Docket NQ.; TSCA·04-2QI2-2605(bj 

http:1,644.43
http:1.644.44
http:1.644.44
http:1.636.25
http:6,569.56


Allanta, Georgia 30303·896ll; 

VerncGeorge 
Chemical Products and Asbestos Section 
U.s, EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303·8960; and 

Saundi j. Wilson 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
U.s, EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-896ll, 

28, 	 If Respondent fails to make onc of the installment payments in accordance with the 

schedule set forth above. and if such payment is not made Vtithin 30 days after the due 

date, that payment plus all subsequent payments (the entire unpaid balance) and all 

accrued interest shall become immediately due and payable on the 31 & day from such 

due date, In addilion, Re'pondent ,hall be liable for and shall pay administrative 

handling charges and latc payment penalty charges as described below in the event of any 

such failure or default 

29. 	 Further, ifRespondent wls to pay the installment payments in accordance with the 

schedule set forth above. the EPA may refer the debt to a collection agency, a credit 

reporting agency, or to the Department Qf JW5tiCC tor filing ofa collection action in the 

appropriate United States District Court. In any such oollcction action, the validity, 

amount, and appropriateness of the assessed pel181ty and ofthi.... CAFO shall not be 

subject to review, 

30, 	 Notwithstanding Respondent's agreement to pay the assessed civil penalty in accordance 

with the installment schedule set forth above. Respondent may pay the entire civil pL'1lalty 

of SIX THOl'SAND, FIVE HUNDRED FORTY FIVE DOLLARS ($6,545) within 
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thirty (30) calendar days af'terthc date on which a copy of this CAFO is mailed or hand~ 

delivere.d to Respondent and, thereby, avoid the payment of interest pursuant to 40 c'F,R, 

§ 1~.ll(a). In addition, Respundent may, at any time after commencement ofpaymcllts 

under the instaUment schedule. elect to pay the entire principal halance remaining. 

together with interest aCl.'Tued up to the date of such full payment. 

31, 	 For the purposes of state and fooeral income taxation, Respondent ~hall not be entitled. 

and agrees not to attempt, to daim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 

pursuant to this CAFO, Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shall 

constitute a violation of this CAFO. 

32, 	 Pursuant to 31 U.s,C, § 3717, the EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalti'" on debts 

owed to the United States and a charge to cover the cost of processing and handling a 

delinquent claim, Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the date 

ofentry of this CAFO. if the penalty is not paid by the date required. A charge will also 

be assessed to cover the administrative costs. both direct and indirect. of overdue debts. 

In addition, a late payment penalty charge shall he applied on any principal amount not 

paid within 90 days ofthe due dote, 

33, 	 Complainant and Respondent shall bear their own costs and attorney fees in this matter. 

34. 	 This: CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent and its successors and assigns. 

35, 	 Each undersigned representative of the parties to this CAFO certifies that he or she is 

fully authorized by the purty represented to ent(,'T into this CAFO and hereby legally binds 

that party [0 this CAFO, 

HighsiJc Chemicals, Inc. 8 
IXH:!..cl N!l.: TSCA-04-2012-2605(b) 



VI. Effective nate 

36. 	 The effective d.te OfthlS CAFO shall be the date on which the CAFO is filed with the 

Regional Hearing Clerk. 

AGRF:F:D AND CONSF:NTED TO: 

Respondent: 
Docket No 

By: 

Title: GlI 

Complainant: nmental Protedion Agency 

By: 
ly H. Rani!1ter Director 
csticidcs and oxics 

Management Division 

APPROVED AND ~O ORDERF:D this 
i'.A 'I

13'day of -".d=.Pfa,.,"'·"""A...vo"'ff'J--~--,--""",,*,,=jI,,-,· 

-By ••4<- e. ~c!A<.<A 
Susan fl. Schub 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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CERTTFICAT~; OF SERVICE 

I herehy certify that on the dale sct out below, I filed the original and one copy of the 

foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order and served a true and correct ropy of the 

foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order, In the Matter of HighsIde Chemicals, Inc., 

Docket Number: TSCA-04-2012-2605(b), to tl,e addTe,,_ listed below, 

William Dyle (via C,crtiiied Mail, Return Receipt Requested) 
General Manager 
Higlu.ide Chemicais, Inc. 
11114 Reiehhold Road 
Gultpurt, Mississippi 39503 

Verne George (via EPA's internal mail) 
Chemical Products and Asbestos Section 
U,S,EPARegion4 
61 Forsyth Street, S,W, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Rohert Caplan {via EPA's internal mail) 
011icc of Environmental Accountability 
U,S, EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

By; r~~lU;:~@tL Date j). - /L/ - I/J.
~PatIiciaJt=BuITo~ - --, , < 

Regional Hearing Clerk 

1).s, EPA Region 4 

61 Forsyth St, S. W. 

Atlanta, GA 30303 


(404) 562-9511 


